# **The School of Mary**

(last updated: 12-12-20)



# Table of Contents

It Starts with Unity – Unity of Love	4
Teaching on Pride	5
Teaching on Worry	6
Having Daily Spiritual Communion	7
Teaching on Faith	8
Teaching on Humility	9
Teaching on Unity	10
Teaching: Question About Covid-19	11
Taking the Time to Think	12
Teaching on Reading Her Teaching and Cooperating with that Grace	13
Persevere the Attacks of the Enemy	14
Teaching on Rejection	15
Teaching: Continue Striving to Do as I Ask	16
Teaching on Suffering	17
Being an Ambassador of Mercy	18
The Importance of Your "Yes"	19
Armor of the Ambassodor's The Enhanced Armor of Mercy	20
How to Make Decisions and the Feast of the Assumption 2020	22
A Feast of Graces that Will Allow You to Recognize God's Will in Your Life	23
The treasures of mercy	24
Receive Enlightenment into Your Soul	25
"The hearts of my son's mercy and mine are joined to bring you the graces of mercy"	26
Teaching: You have trusted and entrusted to carry on the legacy of mercy	27
You have been chosen and called for such a time as this	28
On the day you were born	29
Today call on the power of the Two-Hearts of Mercy	30
I am invested in your life - do not fear in these dark times	31
My love and graces continue to flow into your lives.	32
Teaching: An undercurrent of fire: the fire of mercy and walking in Jesus' sandals	33
Be the Mirror of Divine Mercy	35

February 8, 2020 – Men's Retreats

#### It Starts with Unity – Unity of Love

My daughter<sup>1</sup>, this is the sound of unity<sup>2</sup>. How beautiful the sound, the great and awesome work, that God can do through this united love for me. This<sup>3</sup> is a true calling of an Ambassador, my daughter. Please, my children, open your hearts to hear God.

When you are united in this way, God moves quickly to answer prayers. My daughter, you see, you hear the sound of love united to do the will of God.

My sons, thank you for being here tonight. There are oceans and oceans of graces being poured out on you this weekend.

Peace, Peace, Peace of Jesus be with you

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This message is directed to all the Ambassadors.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The men at the retreat together prayed the rosary and then united in song (high praise) in the chapel for some twenty minutes.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Unity of love and mercy.

March 22, 2020

### **Teaching on Pride**

My daughter, when you cannot admit that there's even a possibility you could be wrong, that is pride. Listen to me as I listen to other hearts that are hurting, that are calling on me.

Lay down first of all your pride at the Altar of Grace where you can pick up the grace of humility, of selflessness, where the spirit of offense is also laid down, so that your will is given over to God, to my son.

My Beloved, it is a new dawn that is coming, and the light of this new dawn will shine through you.

My daughter, the reason you cannot feel repentance or experience it is because you have become blind of sight of heart, that you have become accustomed to denial that your heart is crusted with the spirit to be right and self-righteousness.

You must ask yourself if you are truly ready to be wrong about how you feel about being entitled to your feelings and how you react to that entitlement. For even the Devil feels entitled to fiercely destroy God's children for that is what sent him to Hell: his desire to be like God, to be above my son, for pride and arrogance are the roots of entitlement. This is where hurt feelings come from. This is where disobedience comes from!

You see, my daughter, God will lift you up. He will be the one to show his love, his favor, when it is time. He will bring you honor. He will bring you the respect you are to have.

My children, you are not as far off as you think, and not as close as you think. But you have said "yes," and that will bring you as close as God calls you.

My children, you have become numb: numb because you protect yourself from pain and suffering, but you must allow me to remove that defense you have placed around your heart, soul, and mind.

It is time to write a new book of mercy, where the other one has been received, and this one begins.

April 1, 2020

### **Teaching on Worry**

My Beloved children, thank you for being here with me once again. My children, you are living the Lenten season; you are living the Passion of my son.

My children, do not despair, do not worry, for worry is useless and brings about fear. Close the door to worry so that fear will not enter. Worry opens doors to untrust of God. Worry opens doors of guilt, opens doors to many health issues, opens doors to the fear of death of many kinds.

Pray, pray, pray that your faith will endure with grace, with exaltation.

Look around. Look to the left and look to the right. There are clouds of darkness wanting to overtake your joy, your view of my son. It wants to impede your faith from being put into action.

My children, your greatest test will be to be patient with one another, to love and serve one another, to forgive one another, to show mercy to one another. Look ahead of what are the needs of each other without the attitude of entitlement.

Learn to serve as you have been served. Service is the hardest to give when you think the one to serve is not worthy of your kindness.

Kindness, kindness, kindness will remove many sins because you will see things differently afterward.

Q: How can we learn to trust?

A: When you overcome fear with obedience of God's voice, his word, then you will conquer the fear that you have had to face. When you lack in obedience, you will lack in trust.

April 8, 2020

## Having Daily Spiritual Communion

My Beloved children, I have chosen you to bring mercy, to bring love, to bring forgiveness. This comes at a great cost, but my son has already paid for it. Now claim it as a grace that has been given to you.

My children, I am inviting you to commence having daily Spiritual Communion, for this keeps you in touch with my son's heart, and this keeps you prepared to receive him in the Eucharist.

Now are the graces flowing to you like a stream that is always waiting for you and ready to empower you with the graces you are needing.

April 15, 2020

# Teaching on Faith

We begin with the Divine Mercy Chaplet.

My children, why do you pray? Do you believe that your prayers are heard? Do you truly believe that God exists and that he answers your prayers? This is faith; to believe.

Today I'm inviting Abraham and Moses. They will spread upon you the seeds of faith to be with us (you), to send this grace of faith. This must be one of the foundations to keep you grounded in the Truth, to keep your soul embraced by God, Jesus, and the Holy Spirit.

My son on the cross, my son in his resurrection is faith in action. You must be that faith in action for others who do not believe.

# Teaching on Humility

My children, I have called you to be set apart. I have called you to live for God. I have called you to live a merciful life; to live love and forgiveness in ACTION.

My children, I have reached down into your hearts—by the grace of God I have brought new and everlasting freedom to love the Lord our God with your whole heart and strength.

My children, rejoice because today humility is being showered upon you so that as you are set apart, it will become first nature to you to love.

My children, the more you are set apart, the more you can be rejected.

#### <u>Humility</u>

- Humility is the essence of touching the heart of God.
- Humility requires that you submit to the will of God.
- Humility joins the angels to give God his place.
- Humility communicates with your heart and soul to know that God is God and you are made in his image.
- Humility does not reproach you for loving God—it respects God and all of his children with love and mercy!

Today I am asking that you bring my sons (the priests) back to me with your prayers.

# Teaching on Unity

My beloved children continue to pray for the meaning of unity: for the meaning is to be of one mind in Christ.

My children, as you seek me, as you seek my son, as you seek the Holy Spirit, as you see our Father's wisdom: when he shows you and gives it to you, then you must live it.

My children, unity is always thinking of someone else's needs and trusting that God will take care of yours.

My children, selfishness is enmity to unity.

My children, I pray that today you have already placed the armor of God on you so that you will keep your focus on the prize, the prize of eternal life, the prize and honor of bringing glory to the Almighty and Most Powerful Holy Trinity.

My children, I remind you to call on your Guardian Angel for he has specifically been empowered to watch over you. Thank him, call on him, respect him, and honor him, for he has great love you, for this love, was given to him for you. Make this as part of your protection daily.

# **Teaching: Question About Covid-19**

What is the sickness of the soul that opens the people to have a severe reaction to the Covid-19?

The sickness of unlove: where there is deep hurt, where there remains an empty need to be loved, where there has been a loneliness that only God can fill, and his love. Severe rejection!

May 6, 2020

# Taking the Time to Think

My children; my dear children -

As the Holy Spirit comes to speak, I also speak that God's word, my son, the word, will always be on time; it is never too late and never too early. Kindness is the same way: a kind word and kind act will always be received and always on time.

A criticizing, cruel word and act is always at the wrong time. Always take the time to think and consider what your words and actions will do. Will they bring affirmation and love or condemnation? My children, when you can walk in the sandals of my son, then you can speak the real word of truth that will cut to the depths of the sin you are exposing.

May 13, 2020

## Teaching on Reading Her Teaching and Cooperating with that Grace

My most beloved children,

Today I embrace you with my mercy, with my care and compassion. If you could only see the great and mighty graces that are being sent to you so that the heroic virtues will abound in each and every heart.

I wish that you be a light that all could see. I wish that you would be that arm of mercy to pick up those that have fallen, an arm of mercy to embrace those that sorrow, those that need my Love. You will be the great sign that I am leaving for all to know that I have come to your humble heart.

Today I wish that you would look back on the teachings I have already sent you, that I have already given grace for.

Have you cooperated with that grace? Have you fought your own flesh to behold those graces of Love, those graces of forgiveness, those deadly habits that do not do anything to bring you closer to my son. Are you praying to the point of shedding your old self to allow for your new creation to come to pass. My beloveds, your foundation, your ground, has been tilled; has been fertilized, has been manured where the stench is so strong that you no longer wish to stand the stench of your old self. But then new life comes and bears much fruit.

My children, I have been and will continue to send you graces as I prepare this sanctuary of grace to receive those that would become priests and nuns and my children who have been called to live a Holy Life, the Holy calling of matrimony.

My children, I smile as I see your heart so ready to conform to the will of God. For this has been in his will.

May 20, 2020

#### Persevere the Attacks of the Enemy

I am going to teach you how to persevere the attacks of the enemy: the attacks of Satan.

First, you must believe that Satan does exist, and his main objective is to destroy the children of God by any means possible. He knows all your weaknesses, all of your sins, and he especially knows your strengths.

My children, the true way to defeat these attacks is to keep humble. Humility shines like a candle in a dark room. There is no mistaking it. Satan desires to put out that light, but this light cannot be shut-off or turned off.

My children, the next part of your armor is a grateful heart: a heart full of thanksgiving.

My Ambassadors, this will be your first lesson. My Ambassadors, the preparation for the *Great Calling* is continuing to be prepared.

My daughter, the Holy Spirit will guide you and be the teacher.

My children, my Ambassadors, our Almighty Father, Son, and Holy Spirit, have provided for you a holy priest, many holy priests. Do not fear in asking their direction, for I will also inspire them to bring to you, to prepare for your next steps in the foundation of holiness.

# **Teaching on Rejection**

My beloved children, I am here! I am here to teach you, to lead you, to instruct you, and also to listen to your hearts.

So many of your hearts are crying in the pain of rejection, which leads you to fear: the fear to love, to accept love, and to give love. Open that dark corner of your heart that still has you in that dark place, that still responds to rejection or perceived rejection.

Rejection always makes you a victim unless you give that rejection immediately to my son on the cross.

Rejection always rejects back: it rejects to hurt like you are hurting and many times more.

Rejection does not discriminate, for it rejects not only the one that rejected you but also the one that you think might reject.

You reject the one that does not agree with you. Rejection is an entity of fear: fear that if you are rejected, God also will reject you.

The root of rejection can be burned into the *Flames of Love*. Many times this flame is in those that you have rejected.

It is a lonely place to live in the *Valley of Rejection*, where you wait in the darkness, waiting to be rejected again. It is time, my children, that you come out of this valley and walk out into the light where you will be free to love: you will be free to love again.

My children, it will take courage to accept that God loves you. And most important, that he can love you through those that would seem they cannot love you: those that you have rejected for so long that there is a shield to protect you. Now take down this shield and allow the fresh warm love of God to renew you and make you into a new creation: a new wineskin ready to hold more love than you have ever known.

My children, thank you for being here again to receive my motherly instructions.

My children taste and see the goodness of the Lord.

May 30, 2020

# Teaching: Continue Striving to Do as I Ask

My beloved Ambassadors, It has brought me much joy as your mother, as the Mother of God, that you would respond to my call with an open heart and open minds ready to become as one.

It takes perseverance, love, forgiveness to continue striving to do as I ask. To see you struggle, to see you make others first, is indeed a joy to me.

My Beloveds, you have placed a mold in place for others to follow. My sons called to be in the front—paving the way, the way of my son; to seek God, to follow God, to worship God and to bring God, our Father, all glory and honor.

My Beloveds, a mother that is not in any way holding back on trusting you with what is to come to pass.

My daughter, you too are ever so close to my heart, ready to shower you with any grace that you need for the needs of my children who entrust to me their hearts.

Keep on the path—the way—there will be no mistake where you should walk when you should talk and when to show mercy.

Mercy encompasses the whole world. It wraps its arm around anyone who calls out for it and even those who don't.

June 03, 2020

# **Teaching on Suffering**

My Beloveds,

Today my lesson and my grace is about suffering, how to persevere through suffering, and how to persevere for the glory of God. My children, suffering has been a product, a fruit, of sin. Before my son's suffering and his death, sin existed as a punishment of disobedience, and its stain could not be removed. Even though forgiveness could come through the sacrifices of bullocks and the sacrifices priests offered up to God for forgiveness, but the stain of sin still remained.

Upon my son's suffering and dying, then could suffering be joined with that of my son's, which then redemption of your suffering could be offered, too, for the glory of God.

As you embrace the cross with my son, your sacrifice is accepted and also embraced by God, our Father, and this is an acceptable sacrifice that is jubilation in heaven. Many souls, including yours, are given special graces to complete until the end of time, your time here on earth, your time in heaven with us.

My children, when you do this intentionally and with joy, there remains with you gratitude for the greater glory of God.

My children, my grace for you today (is) that you discover the treasures, which are many in uniting your sacrifice and suffering to my son for his (and our) Father.

Each time this happens, it brings my son joy to see our Father's joy. Remember, God will not allow more than you can handle. Persevere, Persevere.

Thank you again for being here today.

June 10, 2020

## Being an Ambassador of Mercy

My Beloved children-My Beloved Ambassadors,

I was the teacher for my son—to teach him the ways of grace, to teach him obedience, to teach him humility, to teach him mercy.

This is what I have been instructing you. I wish that all the graces that have been given to you you are using for the grace and honor of God – of the Holy Trinity.

My children, my beloved children, I wish as my Ambassadors you are using these graces.

My children, in my instructions as an Ambassador of Mercy, I will bring forth these attributes of an ambassador for the Kingdom of God.

An Ambassador of Mercy – Are you being that Ambassador of Mercy where these souls that need mercy are being refreshed or quenched in the rivers of mercy?

My children, the graces are here for the asking. All the instruments and tools needed have been given, however, because of distractions, we fail to know they are there.

My children, I am asking of you today to be a living libation for the Lord: a living example, a living warrior for mercy, where your whole being will be for mercy; the mercy of God in action.

(for Henry)

Remind my son that he is right to say that you are not the savior. However, you can be the arm of mercy that reaches out to draw those that need it to the river of mercy.

My children, it brings me much joy to be an instrument of teaching you the ways of the Lord.

Thank you, thank you, thank you for coming ready to open your heart, soul, and mind.

## The Importance of Your "Yes"

June 17, 2020

My children, today, I want to thank you for your yes!

Today I wish to reveal to you the importance of saying yes, of proclaiming your fiat to God: when you say yes to the will of God, you decide to live in the life centered around the Kingdom of God.

Your "yes" to the Creator is completely contrary to Satan's "no" when he chose to become his own god, whom everything is centered on; him with no concept of love, no concept of forgiveness, and no concept of mercy.

My children, your yes to me, is like to Almighty Father, who in his mercy has sent me to you to instruct you in the ways of the Holy Trinity. You see, my daughter, I too can be an Ambassador sent by God to fulfill what God has ordained for each and every one of you. Each one of you was chosen to participate in this mission of mercy, the calling of the unity of mercy in action.

There are more called and many who have said no. My children, it is a delight and joy to be on the front line with you, my Ambassadors.

My children, thank you for your yes, your fiat to the Almighty Creator of heaven and earth.

May the peace of our Lord, which surpasses all understanding, be with you, be upon you and your hearts. May this peace lead you and be the Consoler of all that you encompass.

# Armor of the Ambassodor's The Enhanced Armor of Mercy

June 24, 2020

As I awakened this morning to come and pray, as usual, I began to see Our Mother with her armor on, and usually, I send out the warrior angels to go do battle, but today I was right beside Our Blessed Mother, and I was also in armor and realized I'm also going into this battle. Of course, I, who likes to be in control, asked, "where are we going, Mother?" Then I realized that I would go wherever she takes me.

Then she says, "we are going to fight another kind of battle. The battle is to go to the real victims of injustice, the victims of unlove, the victims where there is no mercy given." So she began to show me the armor<sup>4</sup> I would need for this kind of battle: *the Breastplate of Mercy* (note there is a heart on the center of this breastplate).

Our arms would have the *Sleeves of Comfort,* where we would embrace those that are hurting in pain because of lack of love: where up to now, arms have only been to be the strength to destroy God's image in someone.

The hands would wear gloves so soft to bring gentleness and kindness. "I will work great miracles of conversion of the heart through these hands of healing: healing of all kinds.

"Your eyes will melt the stony hearts, will pierce the soul not to be afraid to love again. These souls will be granted the courage to reconcile with God because understanding and compassion will come from those merciful eyes that will plunge into the darkness of sin and death to bring them back to life, and all for the glory of God. You shall make God smile because his child, who was once lost, will return to his father and reconcile.

"The mouth will wear a *Mouthpiece of Joy*: a smile that can conquer Dominions; that can bring down the ruthless and insincere of heart. This mouthpiece will alone sing praises to God. This Mouthpiece of Joy will reveal all of God's greatness in which the magnitude of his mercy is unfathomable. This mouthpiece will declare the goodness of the Lord; it will declare upon this earth that Jesus is Lord; it will declare God's love for his children and call them forth. This mouthpiece shall shout on the mountain tops "how great is our God," how he has shown mercy to those who don't deserve it. This mouthpiece will tell of the time where God reached out his arms of mercy to show that God is not too far from his children for him to reach. God would be a father to the fatherless.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> The armor of God found in Ephesians 6: 11-17 is an defensive and repulsive armor, "that you may be able to stand firm against the tactics fo the devil. This armor is for an offensive armoragainst the strongholds of the enemy to set the captive free, to bring mercy in all its forms. These two armors are to be used together "to fight another kind of battle" for the glory of God and the building up of the Kingdom.

"Your feet will wear shoes that cannot be seen: only in the spirit, for they will take you places where Jesus walks, where Jesus has led, where Jesus brings the Good News: glad tidings of forgiveness of reconciliation. These shoes will have wings that will take you places where only the elect are chosen and taken, to walk among the poor in spirit, to walk among the saints and where they have walked, where angels from God's throne will allow you to forge<sup>5</sup> through and take the keep, to set free the captives from bondages that have been there for 1,000 generations. You will fight a good battle of mercy, coming back victorious where the prize will be to take mercy, to show mercy, to talk mercy, to teach mercy, the mercy of God. These shoes will cause you to always walk humbly before your God. What a privilege! What an honor to have this within our reach where God has sent his son to bring this news, this knowledge of God, and his love for us. What a humble place to be, to know how unworthy a sinner you are, and yet God does not see your weakness and your sin but sees through the holes of Jesus' hands and feet, and he forgives.

"The armor on your thighs shall be made of brass, where you will stand firm against the wiles of the enemy. The brass will become as gold to keep you steady on the word of God: gold because you have been tested time-and-time again, and you have been found worthy through the fires of suffering for God! You shall not veer to the right or to the left, but to the goal that God has set.

"You ask, where do I begin? You will begin with your neighbors. The neighbors who you think are unlovable, the neighbors you think you cannot serve.

My children, it is time that you take forth and shower mercy where I am sending you.

My beloveds, I wish that you would take my son out to others. My son will always meet you where you are at. He will give you what you need. As he comes to you now, take him to others.

My children open the windows! Open the doors! Let the flow of mercy go into the byways and the highways.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Forge: A hard path to develop a successful relationship, especially in business or politics, with another country, organization, or person. To create things through hard work or toil, to reach the goal by working hard to create a **path** through defenders.

# How to Make Decisions and the Feast of the Assumption 2020

My daughter choose not to make decisions out of fear, but always by the will of God. How will your answer bring glory to God? How will your answer and decision bring others closer to him?

I wish that you extend the invitation (Feast of the Assumption) to my priests, to my daughters (nuns). But you have all been called to speak as prophets, to love as priests do their flocks.

My children, you invite those on your heart, and God's will will be done, for he will bring those he wants, those he knows will respond with love. So, pray, pray, pray, and invite those that the Holy Spirit places in your heart to invite.

My children, my beloveds, those that accept the invitation will receive the first fruits of the School of Mary. Please do not invite out of emotion, but by the Holy Spirit.

My children, those that come will take my graces that day to those that have been left behind so that no one will be left without my love. My embraces of mercy will be sent out to embrace all my children.

# A Feast of Graces that Will Allow You to Recognize God's Will in Your Life

My beloved children, I am setting before you a feast: a heavenly feast where your food will be graces needed to continue this calling in the Heavenly Mercy of God. My children, it will be the choicest of virtues, the choicest of delicious flavors that, not only will you be the salt, but those that taste of your fruit will bring glory to God. My children, your lips will drip with the Honey of Mercy. Your love will seem like the *Milk of Life*.

My children, the Lord, in his vast mercy, is setting before you grace to recognize the will of God in your life because the taste will be bitter and the milk will sour; where unforgiveness will cause you to repent because of the great turmoil it causes in your soul; where anger will bring about the sickness of your soul to the point of sadness and lack of joy.

Lack of joy causes ungratefulness. Being ungrateful only sees what you do not have and expects the world to give you what you need: this is a total lie of Satan to distract you from seeing God's plan for your life is much more than you could ever, ever give yourself!

When your life is in God's hands, only expect the most perfect of gifts for your life, for your soul.

Embrace today every good thing in your life, even if it seems to your eyes to be disappointing and painful.

My children, how I wish that you would open your hearts to receive the joy for your journey with us.

## The treasures of mercy

My child, do you not know that your life and what happens in it is also very important to us. You are not alone. You are not abandoned. You are not orphaned. My child, what wounds your heart also wounds mine.

My beloved children, today, I bring you treasure chests of treasures. These are treasures of mercy: treasures that are waiting for you to ask for in order to show mercy. Among these treasures of mercy, there are blessings, virtues, and graces beyond your imagination. Only the Holy Spirit will reveal the great and wondrous deeds of our God, our Creator, our Omnipotent Father, whose love is only for you.

My child, these treasures, many of you have already discovered because only when you show mercy, and when you live in mercy, and when you walk in mercy, will you discover many of these treasures.

My child, as you walk in mercy, the mercy of my son, your footsteps will leave the scent of that mercy, which is God's love and forgiveness in action.

Ask yourself, "where can I show mercy today?"

Thank you. Thank you for your attention today as you strive to live this great and awesome message of mercy.

July 15, 2020

# Receive Enlightenment into Your Soul

My beloved children, I wish to bring enlightenment into your soul. Not to discourage you, not to judge you, but that you may truly see how unfathomable the mercy God has for you.

My beloveds, this enlightenment is to bring to a realization that God in his mercy is the one and only Creator and Father of us all. That you must trust in God and be patient with yourself as God continues to mold you and grace you to say yes always to his hand in your heart and soul.

My children, there is woven in you a remnant of the eternal life, of a life filled with God's fullness of the Holy Spirit, a life filled with opportunities to give glory to God with your "yes," and your willingness to reach the goal of every child of God.

Rejoice, for today the heavens are praising and worshipping God for your faithfulness.

Thank you for your "yes" of today once again.

# "The hearts of my son's mercy and mine are joined to bring you the graces of mercy"

#### Queen of Mercy:

My children, I have been with you as I have said before many times that I am moved by your faith, your prayers, so, my beloveds, today as we celebrate this amazing Feast of the Assumption. As I come to you as the Queen of Mercy, I also bring my son Jesus, the Divine Mercy of God that was sent as God's mercy in action; my son that lived suffered and died for the sake of God's mercy in action, his love, his forgiveness, in action.

#### Jesus:

Today I pour out my mercy upon all of you, as water and blood were poured out of me, so it was my mercy. So I tell you today, be patient with one another as the fulfillment of mercy is taking place. It takes the eyes of mercy, the heart of mercy, to see this in the midst of the chaos and pain in this world. See-through my eyes as I was on the cross and was forgiving all mankind for the evil that they would be used [to do] in the hands of Satan: who has no mercy.

#### Queen of Mercy:

My daughter, today, the hearts of my son's mercy and mine are joined<sup>6</sup> to bring you the graces of mercy needed for the journey as you leave here today. Be confident that the graces you will need to face the unmerciful – unkind, unloving hearts that seek to destroy God's mercy in you. So stand firm in what I have called of you: and that is to live, to breathe, to walk mercy. Be the hands of my son. Bring your minds to Christ to be transformed into thinking mercy.

My children, my beloveds, thank you for your sacrifice. Thank you for your "yes." Thank you for coming to celebrate, to serve, to love.

Peace, peace, peace of Jesus be with you. Thank you for being here today.

My children, my apostles of mercy, consider yourselves sent by the hearts of Mary and Jesus in mercy.

My son<sup>7</sup>, you have been given many gifts of wisdom, of knowledge, and you have me—and there are many more who do not want to leave your doorstep until you are no longer here.

Do not run when times get hard and unbearable, for those are the times that I am stretching your faith.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> A reference to the Two-Hearts of Mercy

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Henry Constancio

#### August 19, 2020

# Teaching: You have trusted and entrusted to carry on the legacy of mercy

From Jesus, the Divine Mercy:

My children, my cup runneth over with mercy - allow me to fill your cup for it will never become empty – as you come to me in the Eucharist, it will never be empty.

My mercy was drawn out of me each time I was beaten, each time I was spat on; each word, curses of every form, and demonic actions against me: mercy was being consumed by me. For each moment of torture, there was recompense in mercy. For each tear that was cried for me, mercy was being drawn to forgive and to love. Every thought of anguish for me was turned for the glory of my father.

So my Beloveds, I pour out this mercy on you for all your anxieties, all of your anguish, all you think is unjust. Make it a well of mercy where you can continue to have unending actions of mercy. Draw from this well for this well connects to my Fountain of Mercy.

My Fountain, being the pierced side that was to destroy me, but for mercy, what was meant to cause me harm, is now for the great and magnificent glory to my father.

With great joy, I suffered all, all of the sufferings I went through. But as you join your suffering with mine, then you and I join our sorrows and pains for the everlasting joy that will be when you finally reach your destination.

My child, many of your heart's tribulations are revealed and magnified so that the illumination of your true intent and soul is in the light: not to condemn and judge and cause guilt, but to bring you to the forefront to be among the ones called to be, *that Remnant of Mercy*.

My child, my Beloveds, choose every word and every action for each and every person that presents themselves before you, whether foe or friend: for all will be judged. For to those who are given much, much is expected. Where you show mercy, mercy is expected.

My Beloveds join with me on this journey. Be my Ambassadors of mercy.

My children, you have trusted and entrusted to carry on the *legacy of mercy*. So it is written, and so it is.

Thank you. Thank you. Thank you.

The Two-Hearts of Mercy,

Mother and Son.

September 23, 2020

## You have been chosen and called for such a time as this

#### From Jesus:

Amen, Amen I say to you, my Ambassadors of Mercy, you have been chosen and called for such a time as this <sup>8</sup> that the graces and fruits of mercy are being showered upon you to spread, to shower others as an Ambassador of the Kingdom of God. This is no small calling – no small task that has been asked of you.

The difference that you as Ambassadors are to make upon and in this Kingdom: [a kingdom] that Satan has set up to destroy, to disunify what I have brought together is his goal only to destroy in unimaginable ways.

Take seriously, take to heart that this is a privilege and honor God has bestowed upon you. This is your first calling to love and serve God, where he has placed you. My Divinity is yet a mystery (to its fullness) to be discovered. However, as you continue and commence this calling, My Divinity is the main reason forgiveness can happen.

#### My Mary, do not fear!

My Beloved, do you not understand the amount of faith it has taken for you to sit here today as you come before our mother and me to believe that what you are hearing is not from you but a divine intervention in the spectrum of life. So do not worry but believe.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Mary's note in margin: this meaning is 1000 generations to come

#### On the day you were born

My Beloveds, my beloved son<sup>910</sup>: On the day you were born, we surrounded you with kisses of thanksgiving for we were and are thanking God for the day you were born. My son, you are never alone. You will never be alone for we, for I will be with you in your coming and your going. My son, it is time that you accept that you are acceptable, that you are and have been selected and called for this great task. Embrace the graces that I have sent you and those I am sending you. My son, on this very special day in time, I wish that you would free yourself from the chains of fear: fear of not having enough; the fear of not being enough. I have placed in your heart, my heart: let it lead you. Allow your heart and soul to proclaim the greatness of the Lord, for, on the day that we come for you, you will be free to say yes.

My son, spread your wings, your wings of perseverance, your wings of freedom. To love the freedom, to know that there is no one like you: no one can ever take your place.

Thank you for your yes to me.

My daughter, do not fear the darkness of this time. Be at peace knowing that every step is being counted; every step is being led; every step is leading to the Kingdom of God; every step is a step that has a lamp to show that even what you think are mistakes, God is in charge of even these.

Continue to place your total trust in my son, for the Glory of God.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Henry Constancio

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Important to note that while this first section was written to Henry, it starts off with the words, "My Beloveds". This message pertains to each Ambassador!

November 4, 2020

## Today call on the power of the Two-Hearts of Mercy

From Mary Constancio: As I deal with this fear<sup>11</sup>, the Lord has shown me how fear distracted me from doing his will, how it closed me off to the possibility that he is really in charge and that he is the King, our Lord, and Savior. If we cannot believe in these small things, how can I believe in his power of resurrection in us, in me?

#### From Jesus:

Today call on the power of the Two-Hearts of Mercy: where mercy is the power of love, love that is unconditional. Love can defeat any other power that is not of God, not of the Holy Spirit.

Keep this as a tool for your doubts of what the Holy Spirit can do and will do through your yes, your acceptance of what God can and will do through you, through anyone who trusts in God and his omnipresence in your life.

My Beloveds, be ready to live out this great and fearful love and mercy of God.

My children, as you look upon the Two-Hearts, know that the mercy of love and justice will take place. I will not leave you where you are at but will dray you into a place of action.

Our Beloved Mother will transform your heart to love and forgive so that you may accept and move into action.

Jesus: the action of Love and Forgiveness.

My beloveds, thank you, my child, for putting your fears aside to behold my words of love.

Remember, this may seem like you are being asked in faith on fire, but this will cleanse and reform you.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1111</sup> Fear of "am I really receiving messages".

Men's Retreat 11-07-20

### I am invested in your life - do not fear in these dark times

My daughter, my most beloved sons: It brings me great joy that you continue to come to my home: a home that has prepared for your coming. My home welcomes you with open arms, with opens, ready to receive what you have to give.

My sons, I welcome you like any mother that would welcome her children with food for the soul, and food for your heart, and food for your being. My sons, as your mother, I bring to you counsel with grace: grace to continue seeking the will of God in your life. My guidance in your life is not just when you come here, but when you leave here, to bring this love of mercy to the world that seeks food for their soul. At this time, when there is so much turmoil, calm that turmoil with the peace that's beyond understanding. Call on this peace, this peace that is communicated with your peace and joy.

<sup>12</sup>My children, who need their mother - asking that I help them on their way – I am invested in your life. My children, thank you, thank you, who have come to seek God's will. What joy it gives me to see them with their faith.

My children do not fear in these dark times that will become times of grace: more grace to bring to pass an openness to the Holy Spirit to be renewed. In order for renewal to happen, the old must pass away, and in this case, not only the old but evil also: the evil that has caused much despair. Despair and fear, my children, do not take your eyes off of the magnificence and omnipotence of his power to rule. He is the first king, the first ruler that is just, that is merciful.

My children, there is much, much more I wish to bring you, and it will come.

Note: The Blessed Mother wants to stat the devotion of the Two-Hearts of Mercy tonight.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Given in Spanish: Mis hojos, que necesitan de su madre – que le piden que estoy aqui para ajudarles en tu camino – esta jarnado de su vida. Mis hijos, gracias, gracias, que han venido a buscar la volunted de Dio. Que gozo me da ver los con su fe.

November 8, 2020

#### My love and graces continue to flow into your lives.

My children, as you raise me up in your hearts, as you have pledged your love to me, how can I not do the same? How can I refuse your heartfelt petitions, your petitions that are enfolded in mercy?

Thank you, my beloveds, that even your children call me blessed, call me beloved with their hearts. My love and graces continue to flow into your lives.

Thank you. Thank you for being here. Peace, peace of Jesus be with you.

Do not fear allowing my son, Jesus, to come into your midst.

# Teaching: An undercurrent of fire: the fire of mercy and walking in Jesus' sandals

From the Queen of Mercy:

My daughter, my children, You are here because you have trusted me; you have loved me when I called you together to learn and for you to live out mercy all the days of your life. As you live this mercy, others will want and desire it also. What you do not understand is that there is an undercurrent of fire: the fire of mercy that is given to all who want it. This grace comes to each person you speak to; you pray for; you love. So there are flickers and sparks of fire that lite the hearts and souls that you touch. My Beloveds, I wish you would open your hearts with love towards my son: the Divinity of all that is divine. My children, remember that my reason for coming is always to draw you closer to my son.

Listen intently and with an open heart to him, the *Complete Action of Mercy*, whom you need to focus and follow and imitate.

My Beloved, I invite you to make Jesus your Beloved. Come Holy Spirit! Come Holy Spirit, fill my children with this great, great love to totally embrace all my son has to give.

From Jesus:

My Father, today I lift up to you, my Beloveds. Bless them, Father, for they want to do your will. Fill their minds, transform their minds with only wanting to bring you glory. Fill them with every grace that they are needing to participate with this transformation.

I am your Shepard, and as a Good Shepard, I wish to bring to you the jewels the treasures of how to reach obedience, how to succumb to the will of our Father. I want to teach you how to walk in my sandals: how to teach and be a good teacher, how to love the unlovable, how to forgive the unforgivable, how to show mercy to the unmerciful. Take hold of what I wish to bring you, my Beloveds.

## You will bring the light into the darkness

From the Queen of Mary:

My Beloved Children, be it known today in the heavens and the earth that God Our Father has sent forth an army of soldiers to you to protect you – your faith – to guard you, to direct you from the harms and curses that are befalling upon this earth. My children, this is not to bring you fear but awareness of God's plan for your salvation. My children, upon you all, all have a calling of great magnitude to help others to bring hope when there is not hope and where there is no consolation. You will bring the light into the darkness; you will lift the fallen to bring glory to God. My Beloveds, this is where the *Two-Hearts of Mercy* will be extremely needed: needed to bring many hope and trust in God.

From the Divine Mercy (Jesus):

Beloved... bring to the Father, to the Throne of Grace your needs, your trust, your faith. As you bring these pebbles to the altar, the Throne of Grace, the throne where God exists, your pebbles to defeat the great Goliaths of your life, (they) will be defeated in the *Name of the Glory of God*. As I am *The Way*, your way to the truth, I will open truth that no one even suspected. As the *Light of Truth* brings the darkness to the light, it will be exposed so that new life can begin: a new spring, a new sunrise will begin. Forever may the great almighty, everlasting Glory of God be proclaimed over all the earth!!!

December 2, 2020

#### Be the Mirror of Divine Mercy

Queen of Mercy:

My daughter, do you not understand that the arrows of Satan are pointed towards you: towards my Ambassadors? My Child, for such a time as this, I have prepared you with love's mercy. As incomplete as you feel, and as many weaknesses, as you think you have, they are all for the Glory of God.

My beloveds, as you continue to unite, to unite in the mercy of God, you can never fully understand this divine mercy until you reach your heavenly reward.

My children, as this *Great Disunity* is happening in this world, in this nation, you are and should be the *Mirror of Divine Mercy*. The most important part and completion of love and forgiveness is the action. For mercy to be complete, there must be action.

My children, the spiritual world sees you, my Ambassadors, here, as a merciful beating heart. The more unity of love there is, the more your heart beats for God; this brings glory to God.

Jesus:

Do not fear the temptation of being unworthy; the temptation of not being able to be a messenger of mercy.

Thank you for making your commitment to your calling, for if you had not been called, you would not be here.

Just like I chose my disciples that were sent, consider yourselves sent by the hand, by the Word no man, no demonic power can remove. Be therefore sent to proclaim my love, my mercy, for my mercy has sent you!

Thank you for being here today.